
  

  
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, February 8, 2016 

5:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

I. Moment of Silence 
 

II. Pledge of Allegiance  
  
 III.     Approval of the Minutes of the January 25, 2016, City Council Meeting 
 
 IV.       Approval of Agenda of the February 8, 2016 City Council Meeting 

 
V.         Public Comment 

 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.       Resolution for Honorary Street Name Sign for Charles E. Atchison, Sr.  
             Presenter:  Will Rothschild, Communications and Marketing Manager 
 
VII. Public Hearing 
 
 A. Ordinance To Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning  
  Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element, by Amending Section 
  206, Changes to District Boundaries, Specifically Parcels #6-21-13.001.02 &  
  001.00 Located at 243 and 245 East Blackstock Road, which are currently Zoned 
  LOD with a Land Use Designation of Limited Office District to Zone B-1 with a 
  Land Use Designation of Neighborhood Shopping District; and Providing for 
  Severability and an Effective Date (First Reading) 
                        Presenter:  Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff 
 
VIII.  Resolution 
 
  A.   Approving the Purchase of 391 Farley Street (Parcel 7-12-05-173.00) From  
  Calvin Burns for the Turnaround Space Needed When the Farley Street Bridge 
  is Closed by Norfolk Southern Railway Company 
  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 
Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a 
Public Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 
 
 
 



  

* Non-Agenda Items 
  City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter   
  pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel  
  matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item  
  considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City  
  Council. The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the  
  designated time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 
 
 *Agenda Items 
  City Code Sec. 2-56. Addressing Council, Comments or Remarks to Council on Agenda Items Not Requiring Public Hearing. On    
  agenda items not requiring a Public Hearing, please provide to the City Clerk prior to the opening of the meeting, your desire to  
  speak on an agenda item. Remarks shall be limited to five (5) minutes and total remarks on any agenda item shall not exceed  
  twenty (20) minutes. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
      IX.    Executive Sessions 
 
                A.  Pursuant to Section 30-4-70 (a) (5) of the South Carolina Code                
                        to Discuss Matters Relating to Encouraging the Location of a Business in the City 
 
                B.    Pursuant to Section 30-4-70 (a) (1) to Discuss a Personnel Matter Regarding the  
                        Municipal Court Judge  
 

      X.     Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda 
Page Two – February 8, 2016 



  
 

          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III.  



  

  
City Council Meeting  

City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, January 25, 2016 

5:30 p.m. 
 

(These minutes are subject to approval  
at the February 8, 2016 City Council meeting.) 

 
City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor 
pro tem Sterling Anderson, Councilmembers Jan Scalisi, Jerome Rice, Erica Brown, Laura 
Stille and Rosalyn Henderson Myers. City Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy 
McCabe were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours 
in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City Council meetings are 
recorded for a complete transcript. 

 
 

I. Moment of Silence - observed 
 

II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited  
  
 III.     Approval of the Minutes of the January 11, 2016 City Council Meeting –  
  Councilmember Brown made a motion to approve the minutes as received. 
 Councilmember Stille seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
IV.      Approval of Agenda of the January 25, 2016 City Council Meeting –  
 Councilmember Henderson made a motion to table Item VI.A. Councilmember Rice 
 seconded the motion.  Mayor pro tem Anderson asked why the item was being tabled. No 
 response was given. The vote was 5 to 2, with Mayor White and Mayor pro tem 
 Anderson voting against the motion. Motion carried. 

 
V.        Public Comment -  

 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 Brenda Lee Pryce, 291 Alexander Avenue, Spartanburg, SC, came forward to speak 
 regarding her concerns of the auctioning of the old Mary H. Wright building. 
 
VI.  Ordinance - Tabled 
 
  A. Authorizing the Lease of 440 South Church Street and for the City Manager  
  to Enter into a Lease Purchase Agreement with Spartanburg Development  
  Corporation (First Reading) 
  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 



  

VII.  Other Business 
 
  A.  Bus Route Review 
  Presenter:  Dennis Locke, Finance Director 
                        Mr. Locke presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “Staff presented to Council the results of a Bus Route Review at the December  
  14th council meeting. Included in that report were several recommendations to  
  improve the service for our citizens. We are requesting at this time approval to  
  implement the following changes on April 1, 2016.  
  ACTION REQUESTED: 
  Route 2-Hillcrest (Two Parts) 
  Part One:  8:30 and 3:30 trips to Converse Heights 

 These trips travel through a residential neighborhood on narrow streets with 
 numerous turns. On the trips that were observed, there was no ridership on this 
 deviation. This observation was in line with information from SPARTA 
 employees. In addition, there is extra time needed on each trip, this causes the 
 Route 2 bus to be late for the pulse on a daily basis. These trips also require a 
 different pattern of service compared to the regular Route 2 alignment and causes 
 missed regular stops on East Main Street. We are recommending that we 
 discontinue these trips. 
 Part Two: Running Late 
 There is no left turn arrow in the outbound direction for the traffic signal on East 
 Main Street and Drayton Road. When traffic is heavy going westbound on East 
 Main Street significant delays at this intersection occur. This causes the bus to run 
 late on the remaining outbound trip and subsequently on the inbound trip to the 
 Transit Center. We are recommending a change in the direction of this route to go 
 to Wal-Mart first then to Mary Black Hospital.   

  We recommend passage of a motion approving these two changes effective April  
  1, 2016. 
  Councilmember Anderson made a motion to approve the request.    
  Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
  B. Boards and Commissions – HARB Application Consideration 
  Presenter:  Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 
  Ms. McIntyre presented Joshua Turner’s application for consideration of   
  appointment to the Architectural Design and Historic Review Board.  
  Councilmember Stille made a motion to waive the rules and appoint Mr.   
  Turner to HARB. Councilmember Henderson Myers seconded the motion,   
  which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
VIII.  City Council Updates –  
             Councilmember Stille thanked city staff for the preparations and work during the  
             recent snowy weather. 
             Councilmember Brown wished the Carolina Panthers well at the Super Bowl. 
             Councilmember Anderson thanked staff for their efforts during the snow storm. 



  

             Councilmember Henderson Myers thanked everyone involved in the MLK activities.   
  She stated that she would hold a town hall meeting on Thursday, January 28 at 5:30 p.m. 
  in the community room at CC Woodson Center. 
             Councilmember Scalisi congratulated staff on their efforts in getting through the snow  
             storm. She commended everyone involved in the MLK events. She reminded everyone  
             of the City Council Retreat on February 6 at The George. 
             Councilmember Rice thanked everyone involved in the MLK events. He commended  
             staff for going the extra mile during the snow storm. He congratulated the Panthers and  
             wished them well in the Super Bowl. 
 
IX.        Executive Session Pursuant to Section 30-4-70 (a) (5) of the South Carolina Code to        
             Discuss Matters Relating to Encouraging the Location of Two Businesses in the  
             City 
             Councilmember Scalisi made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session for the reason  
             stated. Councilmember Stille seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  
             Council adjourned to Executive Session at 5:45 p.m. 
 
             Council reconvened to regular session at 6:45 p.m. Mayor White stated that discussion  
             was held with no decisions made.  
 

 X.        Adjournment – Councilmember Anderson made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  
             Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  
             Council adjourned at 6:46 p.m. 
 
 

 
             ________________________________ 
   Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VI.  



     REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   
 
FROM: Will Rothschild, Communications Manager   
 
SUBJECT: Resolution for Honorary Street Name for Charles E. Atchison Sr. 
 
DATE: February 8, 2016 
 
 
The city’s Honorary City Street Signs ordinance provides City Council with an avenue to recognize and 
honor local citizens who, in the determination of City Council, deserve to be honored for their significant 
contributions to the city. An honorary street naming does not officially change the name of a street, but 
does add the honorary name to the existing street signage. 
 
In accordance with the policy, Charles E. Atchison Sr. has been nominated by Councilmember Jerome 
Rice. Atchison is President/Owner of Atchison Transportation Services, Inc. and Atchison Enterprises. 
Atchison began his career half a century ago as a taxi/delivery driver then expanded his business into a full-
service ground transportation conglomerate that includes his Airport Limousine Service and Atchison 
Charter Service, which initially began with one 47 passenger Eagle bus and grew into 16 motor coaches. 
Atchison's entrepreneurial efforts do not stop there. He manages a large portfolio of real estate and has 
contributed to the redevelopment of the south side of Spartanburg, earning him recognition in South of 
Main as one of the most influential businessmen in the county.  
 
His involvement in the community is vast as well. Notable positions include serving on the board of the 
directors at the Spartanburg Chamber of Commerce, the Spartanburg Children's Shelter, and at various 
colleges throughout South Carolina. Atchison was named the Spartanburg Small Business Person of the 
Year in 1998, at which point he was the first minority to receive this accolade.  
 

 
  
  
 

 
 

 



RESOLUTION 
 

CREATING AN HONORARY STREET NAME SIGN IN HONOR OF 
CHARLES E. ATCHISON SR. ON KENNEDY STREET 

 
 Whereas, the City Council approved a policy for honorary City street signs in 
2014; 
 
 Whereas, the City’s honorary street sign program is a means to honor individuals 
who have made significant contributions to the City as determined by City Council; 
 
            Whereas, this honorary street sign shall not be identified on any official maps 
prepared or maintained by the City government or County government; 
 
 Whereas, Charles E. Atchison Sr. is the founding owner and president of Atchison 
Transportation Services, Inc., headquartered in Spartanburg, SC.; 
 
 Whereas, Mr. Atchison has built a transportation services company that is one of 
the leading businesses of its kind in the Southeast and one of the most successful 
minority-owned businesses in Spartanburg’s history, a fact recognized by his being the 
first minority to be named Spartanburg Small Business Person of the Year in 1998; 
 
 Whereas, Mr. Atchison is also a successful real estate developer who has 
contributed to the revitalization of the City’s Southside, earning him recognition in the 
book South of Main as one of the most influential businessmen in Spartanburg County; 
 
 Whereas, Mr. Atchison is an active community benefactor, whose contributions 
include board positions with the Spartanburg Area Chamber of Commerce and the 
Spartanburg Children’s Shelter 
 
 Whereas, Mr. Atchison has been nominated for a the City’s honorary street sign 
program by City Councilmember Jerome Rice 
 
 Whereas, all property owners adjacent to the proposed segment of Kennedy Street 
have been notified of the proposed honorary name; 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has determined that this honorary street name will be 
to the benefit of the citizens and the City of Spartanburg; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS OF THE 
CITY OF SPARTANBURG, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED DO HEREBY RESOLVE: 
 

1. Brown honorary street name signs reading Charles E. Atchison Sr. Blvd. be 
installed at East Kennedy Street and South Liberty Street. 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its enactment. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
DONE AND RATIFIED THIS 8th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016. 
 
       
      ______________________ 
      Junie L. White, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 

 
  



E MAIN ST

S
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T

E HENRY ST

E KENNEDY ST

E BROAD ST S
 LIB

E
R

T
Y

 S
T

S
 D

E
A

N
 S

T

E LEE ST

DUNBAR ST

A
D

V
E

N
T

 S
T

UNION ST
S

 C
O

N
V

E
R

S
E

 S
T

COMMERCE ST

N
 D

E
A

N
 S

T

S
 S

P
R

IN
G

 S
T

DEBORAH DR

H
A

LL S
T

R
IG

BY
 A

VE

N
 C

O
N

V
E

R
S

E
 S

T

A
LA

B
A

M
A

 S
T

D
ALL

AS
 P

L

BETA CLUB WAY

BROW
N AVE

W HENRY ST

W
HEELE

R C
T

H
E

N
R

Y
 P

L

W
O

O
D

 R
O

W

T
R

A
D

E
 S

T

E
L

F
O

R
D

 C
T

UNION ST

Legend

Parcels

D. Carpenter 1-19-16

Street Name Dedication for
Charles E. Atchison, Sr. Boulevard

Planning Department
596-2068

0 150 30075 Feet

1 inch = 383 feet

K

Proposed Street Dedication



  
 

 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII. A  



      

     REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   
 
FROM:   Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff 
      
SUBJECT:  Rezoning of property located at 243 and 245 East Blackstock Road, Carl R. Fraley, Jr., 

Proposed Purchaser of Properties, on behalf of Marty Reid, Neuberger Management, 
Property Owner. 

 
DATE: February 8, 2016 
 
SUMMARY:  On January 21, 2016, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed a 
rezoning request submitted by Carl R. Fraley, Jr., proposed purchaser of properties, on behalf of Marty 
Reid, Neuberger Management, Property Owner of 243 and 245 East Blackstock Road, to rezone parcels  
6-21-13-001.02 and 6-21-13-001.00 from Zone LOD/Limited Office District to B-1/Neighborhood 
Shopping District, in order to utilize the properties as retail space.  The purchase of the properties is 
contingent upon the request being approved. 
 
The 2004 Comprehensive Plan envisions this area have a future land use category of Limited Activity 
Center, with land use zoned of Limited Office District and Limited Commercial District.  While the 
proposed zone is not entirely consistent with what the Comprehensive Plan proposes, staff would note that 
the proposed use is still consistent with the plan. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposal on January 21, 2016.  After consideration 
of the staff report, public comments, and the criteria set forth in the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance 
and 2004 City Comprehensive Plan, the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the request 
to City Council for the rezoning of the parcel from LOD to B-1. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  The request was endorsed by the Planning 
Commission on January 21, 2016 by a vote of 7 to 0.  Staff’s recommendation concerning this application 
is explained in detail in the attached staff report to the Planning Commission. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the January 21, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting 
and Staff Report with attachments are included.  In addition, enclosed is a proposed Ordinance in the event 
that Council approves the rezoning request. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  N/A 



AN ORDINANCE 
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA 
ZONING ORDINANCE AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE ELEMENT, BY 
AMENDING SECTION 206, CHANGES TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES, 
SPECIFICALLY PARCELS #6-21-13, 001.02 & 001.00 LOCATED AT 243 AND 245 
EAST BLACKSTOCK ROAD, WHICH ARE CURRENTLY ZONED LOD WITH A 
LAND USE DESIGNATION OF LIMITED OFFICE DISTRICT TO ZONE B-1 WITH A 
LAND USE DESIGNATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING DISTRICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg now finds that, upon further review, it is in the 
public interest that the land use designation for the parcels identified on the Official Zoning Map 
of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, dated August 6, 1973, as amended, by changing the 
zone of Lots 001.02 and 001.00, as shown on Spartanburg County Block Map Sheet 6-21-13 
from LOD, Limited Office District to zone B-1, Neighborhood Shopping District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this zoning change would be compatible with surrounding land uses and 
neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare, and, 
further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 21, 2016, at 
which time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity was given for the public to 
comment on the rezoning request; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the staff report, public 
comments, and the criteria set forth in Section 605 of the Zoning Ordinance, subsequently voted 
at that meeting to recommend to City Council that the rezoning request be approved as 
recommended by City Staff. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment.  That the official zoning map of the City of Spartanburg, as referenced 
by Section 206 of the Zoning Ordinance, be, and the same hereby amended as follows: 
 

 The Lots currently identified as 001.02 and 001.00 on Spartanburg County Block Map 
Sheet 6-21-13, shall be now designated as B-1, Neighborhood Shopping District. 

 
Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 
be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(continued) 



Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the City 
Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 
 
DONE AND RATIFIED THIS ____________ DAY OF _________________, 2016. 
 
                                                                                                   __________________________ 
                                                                                                   Junie L. White, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
___/___/___  1st Reading 
 
___/___/___  2nd Reading 
 
 











S p a r t a n b u r g  C i t y  P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
Thursday, January 21, 2016 

1 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
Spartanburg, South Carolina 

 

The City Planning Commission met in City Hall Council Chambers on Thursday, January 21, 2016, at 
5:30 P.M.  The following City Planning Commissioners attended this meeting:  Jared Wilson, Howard 
Kinard, Bob Pitts, Wendell Cantrell, James Jenkins, Mike Epps, and Nancy Hogan.  Representing the 
Planning Department were Assistant City Manager Chris Story; Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff; Julie 
Roland, Planning Department Administrative Assistant; and Buddy Bush, Building Official. 
 

Roll Call 
 

Mr. Wilson, the Chair, stated that notice of this meeting was posted and provided to the media 24 hours in 
advance as required by the Freedom of Information Act. 
 

Mr. Wilson noted that six Planning Commissioners were currently present, constituting a quorum.  Mr. 
Wilson went over the rules and procedures for conducting a public hearing. 
 

Mr. Jenkins moved approval of the Agenda for the January 21, 2016 meeting, with second by Mr. Kinard.  
The motion was approved by a vote of 6 to 0. 
 

Disposition of the Minutes from the August 20, 2015 meeting of the Spartanburg City Planning 
Commission 
 

Mr. Cantrell moved approval of the August 20, 2015 meeting minutes as submitted, with second by Mr. 
Kinard.  The motion was approved by a vote of 6 to 0. 
 

Old Business – None. 
 

New Business 
 

Rezoning Request:  TMS#6-21-13-001.02 & 6-21-13-001.00 – Located at 243 & 245 East Blackstock 
Road, Zone LOD (Limited Office District) to B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping District), in order to utilize 
the properties as retail space.  Carl R. Fraley, Jr., Proposed Purchaser of properties, on behalf of 
Marty Reid, Neuberger Management, Property Owner.  The purchase of the properties is contingent 
upon the approval of the request. 
 

Assistant City Manager Chris Story came forward and introduced to the Planning Commissioners a new 
Planning Department employee, Natalia Rosario; and he said she was currently working part-time, as she 
was completing her Master’s Degree in City and Regional Planning at Clemson University; and she 
would be presenting to the Board Members. 
 
Natalia Rosario, of Planning Staff came forward and was sworn; and she submitted the report the 
Planning Commissioners had previously received in their meeting packets, as well as the slides and 
presentation into evidence as Exhibit A. Ms. Rosario introduced the request to the Board Members, and 
said the petitioner was present to present his case to the Board Members. 
 
Mr. Carl R. Fraley, Jr. of 189 Woodridge Drive came forward and was sworn.  He explained to the 
Planning Commissioners he had recently sold his business that was located in another shopping on 
Reidville Road in the County to Quick Trip.  Mr. Fraley said as part of the 1031 Exchange Program he 
was looking to buy the proposed properties.  The properties are appealing to him and are in a great 
location.  He explained that right now there was about a 75% vacancy of tenants located on one of the 
proposed properties and about 40% vacancy on the other parcel.  He felt the main reason for the vacancies 
was because it was strictly medical offices, which had all been moving to hospital complexes. The 
buildings are kind of run down and in bad condition, yet they were good for him.  He would like to bring 
at least seven of his tenants with him to the proposed properties and occupy about 100% of the buildings.  
He would be spending approximately $100,000.00 on renovations to the buildings and parking lots and.  
felt it would be a win/win for the himself and the City.  None of his tenants would be obnoxious; and 
there would be no more traffic than what the traffic was previously for the medical offices. Some of the 



2 
Spartanburg City Planning Commission Minutes – January 21, 2016 

tenants would need to have the rezoning, including his company; and he would not purchase the property 
without the rezoning request being approved. 
 
Planning Commission Questions: 
 
 Mr. Kinard asked the petitioner if he had closed on the sale to the QT yet.  Mr. Fraley said not yet; 

that the procedure was that QT will put the money in escrow for him, he would purchase the 
properties and renovate them, and then QT would not close until he was out of his current property.  
Mr. Fraley explained that would depend on the request being approved.   

 Mr. Kinard asked Mr. Fraley about his other tenants that needed the rezoning. 
 Mr. Fraley explained at 243 East Blackstock Road, #1 which was vacant would be Computer Doc, 

#2 would be a spa which was also vacant now; #3 and 4 would be a beauty shop; #5 and 6 was 
currently occupied by Dr. Parris who was a neurologist; and 7 would be a barber shop, with #8 that 
was vacant. 

 Mr. Fraley said at 245 East Blackstock Road, there is an engineering company that had just 
renovated and they were under at least a three year lease, on the other end of the building was a 
weight loss doctor. 

 Mr. Kinard asked if the weight loss doctor had been sent a letter regarding the request.  Mr. Fraley 
said yes; and as far as he knew they would probably stay; and Mr. Fraley would take the rest of the 
building and it would then be 100% occupied. 

 
Ms. Rosario came forward again and showed slides of the site, buildings and surrounding area, which she 
explained in detail, in order to better illustrate the request. Ms. Rosario went over the analysis of required 
findings and report the Planning Commissioners had already received in their meeting packets that 
included the following list of criteria for the Commission to consider when reviewing a rezoning request 
and Staff’s analysis of those criteria as follows: 
 

1. Consistency (or lack thereof) with the Comprehensive Plan –The general intent of the B-1 districts, 
as described in the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance, are “intended primarily to serve the needs 
of the surrounding residential neighborhood, providing goods, and services that are day-to-day 
needs, generally classed by merchants as ‘convenience good and services.’”  The Comprehensive 
Plan describes the Limited Activity Center as follows: 
 
“intended for professional offices and small scale retail business serving a neighborhood area.  
Activities within a Limited Activity Center should be fully enclosed, should generate little traffic, 
noise, light or evening activity, and should be compatible with adjacent residential areas.” 
 
While the zoning category of B-1 does not match the zoning categories listed in the Comprehensive 
Plan (Limited Commercial and Limited Office District), the intended use for the properties remains 
the same.  The buildings currently located on the properties will be fully utilized and renovated in 
the process.  The existing buffer yard is the same as is required by low-intensity commercial to 
single-family residential, as well.   

 

2. Compatibility with the present zoning and conforming uses of nearby property and with the 
character of the neighborhood – The properties are surrounded by a mix of uses, including 
neighborhood shopping, single family residential, and offices.  Uses along East Blackstock Road 
(within the City) include other B-1 parcels adjacent to LOD parcels and R-6:  General Residential 
parcels, as well as some B-1 parcels directly adjacent to R-15 parcels.  Change of zone from LOD to 
B-1 would not significantly alter the character of the neighborhood or corridor. 
 

3. Suitability of the property affected by the amendment for uses permitted by the district that would be 
made applicable by the proposed amendment – Since the proposed use of the parcels falls under the 
category of “low intensity commercial” and the properties with which the proposed uses lie are 
adjacent to single family residential uses, Section 505.64, Landscaping Requirements for Buffers 
requires that the properties provide a Bufferyard 3 along any side or rear property line that abuts a 



3 
Spartanburg City Planning Commission Minutes – January 21, 2016 

single family use.  This requirement is the same for any “Office/Institutional/Multi-Family/Special 
Residential” which the property is currently zoned. 

 
4. Marketability of the property affected by the amendment for uses permitted by the district applicable 

to the property at the time of the proposed amendment – The marketability of the property would 
increase with the zoning change.  The zoning change will allow for a wider range of commercial 
uses and will allow for Mr. Fraley to nearly fully occupy the buildings with his tenants upon 
purchase.   

 

5. Availability of sewer, water and storm water facilities generally suitable and adequate for the 
proposed use – Both water and sanitary sewer services are available to this site.   

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS & RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff is of the opinion that the proposed zone change from LOD to B-1 will be a beneficial and 
appropriate use for the area.  Therefore, Staff recommends approval of the proposed zone change from 
LOD to B-1, as presented. 
 
Planning Commission Questions: 
 

 Mr. Kinard asked about the surrounding uses.  Ms. Rosario explained the surrounding use types 
again. 

 Mr. Kinard asked about the buffer regarding the nearby residential area.  Ms. Rosario explained 
that it would not change.  She explained the entire back of the property had plenty of foliage that 
would not change. 

 Mr. Fraley informed the Planning Commissioners he had also brought some pictures with him of 
the dense foliage on the property. 

 Mr. Kinard asked if the 400’ radius that property owner letters were sent to would include the 
neighboring residential area. 

 Ms. Rosario said it did; and she had only heard from one property owner just wanting to know 
what was going on. 

 
Ms. Rosario introduced the pictures into evidence as Exhibit B. 
 
Mr. Wilson opened the public hearing and asked anyone who wished to speak in favor of, or against the 
request to come forward.  No one came forward.  Mr. Wilson closed the public hearing. 
 
Planning Commission Deliberation: 
 

 Mr. Kinard felt it would be consistent with the other properties on the Reidville Road/developing 
commercial area.  He did not feel it would create additional traffic.   

 Mr. Wilson felt the improvements to the area would be good, as well as filling the vacancies. 
 Mr. Jenkins felt it would be a nice addition to the area. 

 
Mr. Cantrell made a motion to approve the request as presented; and he was seconded by Mr. Kinard.  
The motion was unanimously approved by a vote of 7 to 0. 
 
Ms. Rosario said the next step in the process would be for the request to go before the Mayor and City 
Council for another public hearing and First Reading on February 8, 2016; and if it was approved at that 
meeting, the last step would be a Second Reading on February 22, 2016. 
 
Approval of Proposed 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Schedule 
 
Mr. Cantrell moved to approve the 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Schedule, and he was seconded 
by Mr. Kinard.  The motion was unanimously approved by a vote of 7 to 0. 
 



4 
Spartanburg City Planning Commission Minutes – January 21, 2016 

Site and Landscape Plans Approved since the August 20, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting 
 

 AC Hotel – 225 West Main St. 
 Hatcher Gardens “New Entry Walkway System” – 820 John B. White Sr. Blvd. 
 Little Caesar’s – 1635 John B. White Sr. Blvd. 
 Regenesis Healthcare Parking Lot – 460 Langdon St. 
 Whatta Wash Car Wash (East) – 2171 E. Main St. 
 Wofford College Cummings Street Parking Lot. 
 Wofford College Richardson Indoor Stadium – 429 N. Church St. 
 Wofford College Rosalind S. Richardson Center for the Arts – 429 N. Church St. 
 

City Council Updates (FYI) Since Last Mtg. of Planning Commission on August 20, 2015 
 
Mrs. Roland went over the City Council updates that pertained to the Planning Commission since the last 
meeting on August 20, 2015 that were listed on the agendas. 
 

Staff Announcements 
 

 Mrs. Roland also welcomed Planning Staff Member, Natalia Rosario to the Department. 
 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:55 P.M. 
 
       Respectfully Submitted, 
 
       ______________________ 
                                                                                                                              Jared Wilson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
Minutes by Julie Roland, Administrative Assistant 
 
 



  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

VIII. A  



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council     
 
FROM:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
      
SUBJECT: Purchase of 391 Farley Street, Parcel 7-12-05-173.00 
 
DATE:  February 3, 2016 
   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
At the October 22, 2015 City Council meeting, Council was advised that the Norfolk Southern Railway 
Company (“Norfolk”) was demolishing the Farley Street bridge that crosses over the Norfolk rail lines due 
to concerns about structure stability and the safety of the bridge.  The bridge has been closed by the City for 
over a year.  Since the bridge is being removed, it is necessary for the City to acquire a vacant structure 
located at 391 Farley Street, Parcel 7-12-05-173.00, (the “Property”) so that a turnaround space can be 
constructed.  Council approved a resolution authorizing staff to proceed with efforts to acquire the Property 
or to condemn the Property in the event the City could not reach an agreed purchase price.  The owner of 
the Property has agreed to sell the Property for $8,000. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
Approval of Council to the purchase of the Property for $8,000. 
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:   
The cost to the City will be reimbursed by Norfolk. 
 



RESOLUTION   
 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 391 FARLEY STREET 
(PARCEL 7-12-05-173.00)   FROM CALVIN BURNS FOR 
THE TURNAROUND SPACE NEEDED WHEN THE 
FARLEY STREET BRIDGE IS CLOSED BY NORFOLK 
SOUTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY. 

   
 

WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg has reached an agreement with Norfolk 
Southern Railway Company (“Norfolk”) for the removal of a bridge  located on Farley 
Street which crosses over railroad tracks owned by Norfolk; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City to make modifications to Farley Street to 

provide for adequate turnaround space; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to make these modifications and to provide for the safety of 

citizens who use Farley Street, it will be necessary for the City to acquire 391 Farley 
Street (TMS 7-12-05-173.00). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Mayor and Members of City 

Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 

SECTION 1: The City Attorney is hereby authorized to proceed with the 
purchase of 391 Farley Street (TMS 7-12-05-173.00) from Calvin Burns in the amount of 
$8,000.00. 

 
SECTION 2: This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

enactment. 
 

DONE AND RATIFIED this __________ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 

________________________________  
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 



 



 




